
The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for 
all people in compliance with the American with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or 
a particular accommodation for this meeting please contact the ADA Coordinator. 
 

 

PLEASE NOTE:  
 

Persons who wish to comment on an agenda item may do so by submitting the 
Cognito form via the link provided by Monday, January 25, 2021, at 3:00 PM. 
https://www.cognitoforms.com/TownOfRolesville/townofrolesvillepubliccommentsub
missionform. Submitted comments will be delivered to the Planning Board members 
before the meeting for review.  
   
If you wish to join us via Youtube to watch a live broadcast of our meeting, please 
click here: https://www.youtube.com/user/townofrolesville 
 

ITEM  TOPIC 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approve the November 23, 2020, Planning Board meeting minutes 

 
3. MA 21-01, Town Center Zoning District to rezone properties to the new 

Town Center Zoning District and UDO TA 20-02 Removal of identified 
parcels from the Town Center Overlay Zoning District. 

 
4. MA 21-02, Town of Rolesville Property, 11624 Louisburg Road 116.296 

acres Wake County PIN 1779 07 6610 to be zoned Residential 40 
Watershed (R40W) upon annexation (ANX-20-07). 

 
5. UDO TA 21-01, Change Special Use Districts to Conditional Zoning 

Districts 
 

6. Planning Director's Report  
 
a. Town Board/Planning Board Virtual Special Meeting at 9:00 AM on 
Friday, February 26, 2021.  
 
b. Development Activity Report 

 
7. Town Attorney's Report 

 
8. Other Business 

 
9. Adjournment 

Agenda 
Planning Board 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
Monday, January 25, 2021 

7:00 PM 

https://www.cognitoforms.com/TownOfRolesville/townofrolesvillepubliccommentsubmissionform
https://www.cognitoforms.com/TownOfRolesville/townofrolesvillepubliccommentsubmissionform
https://www.youtube.com/user/townofrolesville


1 | P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
   N o v e m b e r  2 3 ,  2 0 2 0  
 
The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for 
all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or 
a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 
 

  
MINUTES 

 
PRESENT:   Mark Powers, Chairman   Mike Moss, Vice-Chairman 
           Frank Pearce, Board Member   Donnie Lawrence, Board Member 
           Jim Schwartz, Board Member  Davion Cross, Board Member 
           Michelle Medley, Mayor Pro-Tem/  Reynorda Pryor, Board Member 
           Planning Board Liaison 
 
           Dave Neill, Town Attorney   Kelly Arnold, Town Manager  
           Danny Johnson, Planning Director  Mical McFarland, Econ.Dev.Mgr 
           Julie Spriggs, Planner II    Shelly Raby, Development Specialist 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Mark Powers called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The board collectively recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

INVOCATION 

Board Member Moss gave the invocation. 

Chairman Powers welcomed Ms. Reynorda Pryor as our newly elected board member. She will 
fill the vacatated seat of Ms. Ruth Payne.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. October 13, 2020, Planning Board Special Meeting Called- Moved by Vice-Chairman 
Mike Moss and second by Board Member Donnie Lawrence the motion to approve the 
minutes of October 13, 2020, carried by unanimous vote. 

b. October 26, 2020, Planning Board Regularly Scheduled Meeting - Moved by Board 
Member Frank Pearce and second by Board Member Jim Schwartz the motion to approve 
the minutes of October 26, 2020, carried by unanimous vote. 

UDO TA 20-04 Town Center Zoning District Text Amendment continued review.  

Planning Staff Julie Spriggs presented the following: 

a. Memo TA 20-04 Town Center 

Planning Board Regular Meeting 
November 23, 2020- 7:00 PM 

502 Southtown Circle, Rolesville, NC 27571 



2 | P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
   N o v e m b e r  2 3 ,  2 0 2 0  
 
The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for 
all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or 
a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 
 

b. Updated Proposed TC Text Amendment 

c. Comments from Bass, Nixon & Kennedy, Inc. 

Mr. Kenyan Burnam, KDM Development Corporation, Mr. Gary Walstead, and Mr. Marty 
Bizzell, BNK Consulting Engineers along with Mr. Charles Hassenger of Hassenger 
Consulting. Mr. Burnam spoke regarding Section 14.13.3 B.3.a Discussion regarding the 
maximum building height permitted in the district versus the “by right height” to determine the 
point where a stepback is required and meets the intent of the Town Center district.  

Mr. Burnam Feels this will negatively impact the project  

Mr. Bizzell stated he would like to remove the statement “by right”. With this wording, the 
concern is this removes the opportunity for a four-story building and an elevator option for senior 
housing. He requests a change to a maximum of 50-foot buildings. 

Vice-Chairman Moss questioned the stepbacks and it only joining non-mixed use, as well as 
the possibility of rewording to “use” instead of “zoning district” Ms. Spriggs noted it may create a 
problem later of doing it by use, especially since this is form-based code. 

Planning Director Danny Johnson noted the objective is how to deal with the transition from a 
low building to a high building. This amendment will apply to all town centers. 

Town Attorney Dave Neill reminded the board that a four-story building would need a quasi-
judicial hearing conducted for approval.  

Planning Board Member Jim Schwartz would like “multi-use recreational trail” wording 
removed/replace.  The wording is not restrictive enough. He proposed to keep walkways, 
sidewalks, etc but remove/strike multi-use recreational. The board collectively agreed. 

Moved by Vice-Chairman Mike Moss and second by Board Member Frank Pearce the 
motion to favorably recommend to the town board of commissioners to approve the 
request of UDO Text Amendment 20-04 Town Center Text Amendment, as presented by 
staff with the items, discussed keeping the graphic in, removing the wording multi-use 
paths, and keeping the stepbacks. The request is consistent with the Rolesville 
Comprehensive Plan to create a new zoning district to increase the potential for vertical 
and horizontal mixed-use and key activity areas across the town and to apply elements 
of form-based code in the current zoning language to ensure quality construction 
standards and design of five stated goals of the Rolesville Comprehensive Plan, carried 
by unanimous vote. 

PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Mr. Danny Johnson reviewed- 

a. Development Activity Report 

 b. Plan Wake - Wake County has been preparing a new Wake County Comprehensive 
Plan called PLANWake and now ready for public review and comments. You can view  the 
draft plan and interactive map on the project website www.planwake.org  There is a short survey 
to offer your opinions and comments on the draft plan.  Please take the time to review the draft 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.planwake.org__;!!HYmSToo!NeZsiuJGl4ha7YmIwFRK-dHr3o59EW1J-qUcW9f7dvUPjzzvuYNDIasJ6jDCQ9m1pFbiBiYGiPAq$


3 | P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s
   N o v e m b e r  2 3 ,  2 0 2 0

The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services for 
all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need assistance or 
a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 

plan and share your views related to the Rolesville area and  Wake County as a whole.  If the 
Planning Board wants a presentation on this draft plan at a board meeting, please let me 
know.  The public survey will close in February 2021,  and all survey results will be presented to 
the Wake County Commissioners for a final decision after the survey closes. 

TOWN ATTORNEY’S REPORT: None at this time 

TOWN MANAGER KELLY ARNOLD spoke regarding a Newsblast coming out soon on the 
Main Street Project. As part of the Main Street LAPP grant project, Stantec has developed a 
survey to gather the public’s input on streetscape design options for the “look and feel” of Main 
Street.  The survey is very visual displaying different themes, landscapes options, hardscapes, 
and aesthetics for medians and at public realm  spaces at the intersection of Young and Main 
Street.   

The following link will take you to the survey:  https://arcg.is/b4ymu 

The survey will be available for two weeks and responses will be collected by Stantec and 
shared with the Town to help inform the process of determining which design/style options to go 
with for the grant project.  Input will also be gathered from key property owners and the 
developers with proposed developments along Main Street (Cobblestone and Wallbrook) to 
ensure Main Street as a whole is cohesive in feel. 

OTHER BUSINESS: None 

ADJOURN 

There being no more business before the board, upon a motion by Board Member Donnie 
Lawrence and second by Board Member Davion Cross, the motion to adjourn carried by 
unanimous vote. The meeting adjourned at 8:13 p.m.  

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Mark Powers, Chairman 

_______________________________________ 

Shelly Raby, Planning Development Specialist 

Back to Agenda

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/arcg.is/b4ymu__;!!HYmSToo!PJF6wPAGFke9LChcdsjB7B7JEnOwevfzZLoXLMVUpWLFDQzdctlbRatvV8FAwbkvBHMQtCKJaHwhiQ$


 

 

Memo 
To: Rolesville Planning Board 

From: Danny Johnson, Planning Director 

Date: January 21, 2021 

Re: 
 
Item 3. Map Amendment 21-01, Town Center Zoning District and UDO TA 
21-01 Removal of identified parcels from the Town Center Overlay Zoning 
District. 

Item 
MA 21-01 – Request by Town Board of Commissioners to rezone 49.23 acres located at 
101, 105, 107, and 109 West Young St, 100, 106, 108, 114, 200 South Main St. from 
Residential I (R1), Downtown Commercial (C), Downtown Commercial Conditional 
Zoning (C-CZ) and Industrial (I) Zoning Districts to Town Center (TC) Zoning District 
and UDO TA 21-02 Removal of identified parcels from the Town Center Overlay Zoning 
District. 
 
Summary Information 
Address         –        Wake Co PIN Rezoning Change__________________________ 
0 West Young St - 1759827219 Residential 1 (R-1) to Town Center (TC) 
101 West Young St -1769015408 Downtown Commercial (C) to Town Center (TC) 
105 West Young St -1769014576 Downtown Commercial (C) to Town Center (TC) 
107 West Young St -1759918780 Residential 1 (R-1) to Town Center (TC) 
109 West Young St -1769014654 Downtown Commercial (C) to Town Center (TC) 
0 South Main St - 1769013468 Downtown Commercial (C) to Town Center (TC) 
0 South Main St - 1769013520 Downtown Commercial (C) to Town Center (TC) 
0 South Main St - 1769012542 Industrial (I) to Town Center (TC) 
100 South Main St - 1769015454 Downtown Commercial (C) to Town Center (TC) 
106 South Main St - 1769014357 Downtown Commercial (C) to Town Center (TC) 
108 South Main St - 1769013355 Downtown Commercial (C-CZ) to Town Center (TC) 
114 South Main St - 1769010454 Downtown Commercial (C) to Town Center (TC) 
200 South Main St - 1759922076 Residential 1 (R-1) to Town Center (TC) 
 



2 

The following parcels will be removed from the Town Center Overlay Zoning District by 
UDO TA -21-02 with rezoning approval to Town Center Zoning District: 
 
101 West Young St -1769015408 
105 West Young St -1769014576 
109 West Young St -1769014654 
0 South Main St - 1769013468 
0 South Main St - 1769013520 
0 South Main St - 1769012542 
100 South Main St - 1769015454 
106 South Main St - 1769014357 
108 South Main St - 1769013355 
114 South Main St – 1769010454 
 
2017 Rolesville Comprehensive Plan and Consistency Statement 
The Future Land Use Map identifies these parcels as Town Center or Preserved 
Open Space. The Comprehensive Plan defines these classifications as follows: 
  
Town Center – Locations that often represent a traditional downtown for locally serving 
areas of economic, entertainment, and community activities. It is a combination of non-
residential uses with residential uses in buildings that are located on small blocks with 
street designs to encourage pedestrian activity using form base designs.  Buildings 
stand two to five stories in height with an unlimited density of residential units above 
storefronts. The compact, walkable environment and mix of residential and non-
residential uses in a town center often support multiple modes of transportation. 
 
Preserved Open Space - These areas are typically public parks, undisturbed, or 
undeveloped land that have been protected from development by local, state, and 
federal agencies or by private and nonprofit organizations, including restricted areas of 
a development that may be under the control and ownership of a homeowners 
association. These lands may also include areas containing natural conditions such as 
wetlands or flood plain areas, steep slope topography, close to the surface bedrock, or 
rock outcroppings where the potential for development is limited. 
 
The proposed Town Center Zoning District (TC) is consistent with the Rolesville 
Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map that classifies these parcels for Town 
Center or Preserved Open Space use encouraged in this district. 
 
Other Town Plans  
The 2002 Thoroughfare Plan identifies South Main St and West Young St as Major 
Thoroughfares. The Main Street Vision Plan identified revision of the existing streets 
and intersections for a more walkable streetscape for the Town Center area. Project 
funding for the improvements has been approved and under design, approval to start 
construction later this year.  No additional street improvements are required except as 
authorized by a site plan approval by the Town Board of Commissioners for 



3 

development of the properties except for the Main Street Park property in the proposed 
Town Center Zoning District. The Comprehensive Bicycle Plan recommendations for 
bike lanes are included in the Main Street Vision Plan improvements to be constructed 
for this area.  
 
Planning Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request as presented and proposed UDO 
Text Amendment 21-02 to remove the identified parcels from the Town Center Overlay 
Zoning District. The proposed Town Center Zoning District is consistent with the 
Rolesville Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map that classifies these parcels for 
Town Center or Preserved Open Space use. 
 
Suggested Planning Board Motion 
I make a motion to recommend of the Town Board of Commissioners approval of Map 
Amendment 21-01 to rezone parcels identified along 100 blocks of South Main St and 
West Young Street from Residential I (R1), Downtown Commercial (C), Downtown 
Commercial Conditional Zoning (C-CZ) and Industrial (I) Zoning Districts to Town 
Center (TC) Zoning District. The petition is reasonable and in the public interest; 
is consistent with the Town's Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map that classifies 
these parcels for Town Center or Preserved Open Space use. Included in this motion is 
to recommend the Town Board of Commissioners' approval of UDO TA-21-02, Removal 
of identified parcels from the Town Center Overlay Zoning District.  The request is 
reasonable and in the public interest, is consistent with the Town's Comprehensive Plan 
recommendations for the Town Center area. 
 
Attachments 
MA 21-01 Town Center Zoning District – Location Map 
MA 21-01 Town Center Zoning District, Zoning and Future Use Map 
MA 21-01 Town Center Overlay Zoning District, Zoning and Future Use Map 
UDO TA 21-02 Removal of identified parcels from the Town Center Overlay Zoning 
District. 
 
 
 



E Young StS chool St

Grani te Pea kDr

Rogers Rd Church S
t

Scarboro St

G olden Acre s St

Granite Falls Blvd N Main St

Perry
 StS Main St

Nortw
ick Rd

W
Young

St

Granite Cre ek Dr

Brown Cir

/
Legend

MA 21-01 - Rezone to TC District



C
C-CZ C-W

COCO-SUD

CO-SUD

I

I

OP-CZ

OP-SUD

R-1

R-1

R-2

R-MH

R2-CZ

R2-SUD
R2-SUD

R40W

CO-CZ

R&PUD

Granite Falls Blvd

Coley
 St

Old Rogers Rd

Scarboro St

N Main
 St

Perry
St

S Main St

W
Young

St

Brown Cir

/

MA 21-02 - Town Center Zoning District
Existing Zoning Future Land Use

Legend
MA 21-01 - Rezone to TC District
Rolesville_Town_Limits

Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Town Center
Mixed Use Neighborhood

Commercial
School
Preserved Open Space
Water Sewer Services

Planning Department 1 inch = 400 feet

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 R

:\P
la

nn
in

g\
M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

ts
\M

A 
21

-0
1 

R
ol

es
vi

lle
 T

ow
n 

C
en

te
r\M

A 
21

-0
1 

To
w

n 
C

en
te

r Z
on

in
g 

D
is

tri
ct

 - 
 R

ez
on

in
g 

an
d 

FL
U

.m
xd



C
C-CZ C-W

COCO-SUD

CO-SUD

I

I

OP-CZ

OP-SUD

R-1

R-1

R-2

R-MH

R2-CZ

R2-SUD
R2-SUD

R40W

CO-CZ

R&PUD

Granite Falls Blvd

Coley
 St

Old Rogers Rd

Scarboro St

N Main
 St

Perry
St

S Main St

W
Young

St

Brown Cir

/

MA 21-01 - Town Center Zoning District
Existing Zoning Future Land Use

Legend
MA 21-01 - Rezone to TC District
Town Center Overlay DistrictPlanning Department 1 inch = 400 feet

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 R

:\P
la

nn
in

g\
M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

ts
\M

A 
21

-0
1 

R
ol

es
vi

lle
 T

ow
n 

C
en

te
r\M

A 
21

-0
1 

To
w

n 
C

en
te

r Z
on

in
g 

D
is

tri
ct

_O
ve

rla
y 

D
is

tri
ct

 - 
 R

ez
on

in
g 

an
d 

FL
U

.m
xd



AMENDMENT TO THE 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

TOWN OF ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Case Number UDO TA 21-02 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE 7: OVERLAY DISTRICT STANDARDS, 

SECTION 7.4  TO REMOVE CERTAIN IDENTIFIED PROPERTIES FROM FIGURE 1, 

TOWN CENTER OVERLAY DISTRICT CONTAINED IN SECTION 7.4.31. 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes 160A-381 and 160D-702 authorize local 

governments, by ordinance, to regulate and restrict the height, number of stories and size of 

buildings and other structures, the percentage of lots that may be occupied, the size of yards, 

courts, and other open space, the density of population, the location and use of buildings, 

structures, and land; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Rolesville Board of Commissioners finds that it is in the public 

interest to amend the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance as described herein below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA: 

SECTION 1. That the following list of properties below is hereby removed and no longer 

identified as being located within the Town Center Overlay District boundaries as shown in 

Section 7.4.31. Figure 1: Town Center Overly District.  Said Figure shall be revised and 

replaced to remove these properties: 

101 West Young St – Wake County PIN 1769015408 

105 West Young St - Wake County PIN 1769014576 

109 West Young St - Wake County PIN 1769014654 

0 South Main St - Wake County PIN 1769013468 

0 South Main St - Wake County PIN 1769013520 

0 South Main St - Wake County PIN 1769012542 

100 South Main St - Wake County PIN 1769015454 

106 South Main St - Wake County PIN 1769014357 

108 South Main St - Wake County PIN 1769013355 

114 South Main St – Wake County PIN 1769010454 



SECTION 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective on the date of its 

adoption by the Board of Commissioners. 

Adopted this ___ day of ____________________, 2021 by the Town of Rolesville Board 

of Commissioners. 

Ronnie Currin 
Town of Rolesville Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Robin Peyton, Town Clerk for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina, do hereby certify 

the foregoing to be a true copy of an ordinance duly adopted at the meeting of the Town 

Board of Commissioners held on this ___ day of ____________________, 2021. 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the Town of 

Rolesville to be affixed this ___ day of ____________________, 2021. 

_________________________________ 

Robin Peyton 

(seal) Town Clerk 

Back to Agenda



 

 

Memo 
To: Rolesville Planning Board 

From: Julie Spriggs, GISP, CFM, CZO, Planner II 

Date: January 21, 2021 

Re: Item 4. Map Amendment 21-02, Town of Rolesville Property, 11624 
Louisburg Road 

Item 
MA 21-02 – Town of Rolesville Property, 11624 Louisburg Road 116.296 acres Wake 
County PIN 1779 07 6610 to be zoned Residential 40 Watershed (R40W). 
 
Summary Information 
Property Address:  11624 Louisburg Road 
PINs:    1779 07 6610 
Applicant:   Town of Rolesville 
Deeded Acreage:  116.296 
Current Zoning:  Wake County Residential 40 Watershed Zoning District (R40W) 
Proposed Zoning: Rolesville Residential 40 Watershed Zoning District (R40W) 
 
Current Land Use and Existing Conditions 
Parcel 1779 07 6610 has frontage along Louisburg Road. The parcel is currently single-
family and agricultural uses, located outside the extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ), and 
county-zoned Residential 40 Watershed (R40W). Adjacent parcels to the north, south, 
and east are county-zoned Residential (R40W).  
 
The Unified Development Ordinance states the intent for the R-III (Residential 3) District 
is established whose purpose is to provide water quality protection in the drainage basin 
of water supply watersheds.Public water and sewer services are unavailable to the site 
currently. 
 
Neighborhood Meeting 
No neighborhood meeting has been held as this property is town owned. 
 



2 

2017 Rolesville Comprehensive Plan and Consistency Statement 
The Future Land Use Map identifies these parcels along with all adjoining parcels 
in the area as Water Supply Watershed and Low Density Residential. 
 
The water supply watershed classification is reserved for the Little River drainage 
area that is subject to the requirements of the State of North Carloina, Public 
Drinking Water Supply Watershed rules and regulations. 
 
The plan defines low density residential as predominately single-family residential 
uses. These are large lots of half acre or more at a density range of one to two 
dwelling units per gross acre with preserved open space tracts and/or agricultural 
and foresty activities.  
 
The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
with preserving open space.  
 
Town Approved Plans  
The 2002 Thoroughfare Plan calls for four lane landscaped median road along 
Louisburg Road.  
 
The Comprehensive Bicycle Plan did not include any recommendations for this area.  
 
Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 
No Traffic Impact Analysis has been conducted at this time. If a TIA is warranted, it will 
be reviewed during the site development review process.  
 
Planning Staff Recommendation 
Annexation of this property is running concurrently with this zoning request. The 
annexation must be approved before the Town may apply zoning regulations to these 
parcels. The Town Board must apply Rolesville zoning regulations within a limited 
timeframe once a parcel is annexed. This request is directly related to the annexation 
petition. 
 
Staff finds the request reasonable, in the public interest, is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan and recommends approval of MA 21-
02. 
 
Suggested Motion: I move we recommend approval of MA 21-02 to the Town Board of 
Commissioners to rezone 11624 Louisburg Road from Wake County Residential 40 
Watershed Zoning District to Rolesville Residential 40 Watershed Zoning District. The 
petition is reasonable and in the public interest and consistent with the Town’s 
Comphrehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map, which identifies this area as medium 
density residential.  
 
Attachments 



3 

MA 21-02 Existing Zoning and Future Land Use Map 
 
 
 



Zebulon Rd

Creek Pine Dr

Lo
uis

bu
rg 

Rd

/

MA 21-02 - Town of Rolesville Property, 11624 Louisburg Road

N Main St

Cro
sso

ve
r

Whit
e Fir

Dr

Lo
uis

bu
rg 

Rd

Creek Pine Dr

Zebulon Rd

Lo
uis

bu
rg 

Rd

Existing Zoning Future Land Use

Legend
MA 21-02 Zone R40W District
Rolesville Town Limits
Water Supply Watershed

Low Density Residential
Preserved Open Space

Water Sewer Services

Planning Department 1 inch = 500 feet

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 R

:\P
la

nn
in

g\
M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

ts
\M

A 
21

-0
2 

R
ol

es
vi

lle
 F

ar
m

 P
ro

pe
rty

\M
A 

21
-0

2_
To

w
n 

of
 R

ol
es

vi
lle

 P
ro

pe
rty

 - 
 R

ez
on

in
g 

an
d 

FL
U

.m
xd

Back to Agenda



Memo
To: Rolesville Planning Board 

From: Danny Johnson, AICP, Planning Director 

Date: January 21, 2021 

Re: UDO Text Amendment: TA-21-01 Changing all Special Use Zoning Districts 
(SUD) to Conditional Zoning Districts (CZ). 

Summary Information 
As provided in NC Chapter 160D: Article 7; Section 160D-703(a)1 before July 1, 2021, 
and Session Bill 2019-111, Section 2.9(b), in effect as of January 1, 2021, the authority 
to have Special Use Zoning Districts is now prohibited and all existing Special Use Zoning 
Districts (SUD) are to be change to Conditional Zoning Districts (CZ). This session law 
requires that the current Unified Development Ordinance be amended to remove all 
provisions for Special Use Zoning Districts (SUD) and the Official Zoning Map be 
relabeled or rename all (SUD)’s to (CZ)’s. 

2017 Comprehensive Plan 
The Rolesville Comprehensive Plan encourages revisions to the Unified Development 
Ordinance when the current standards are not following current demands and practices of 
the community's needs or changes required by state law.  The proposed text amendment 
will address such a condition of the UDO and will serve in the public interest.  The change 
is consistent with the Rolesville Comprehensive Plan to update the Unified Development 
Ordinance and Official Zoning Map to change all Special Use Zoning Districts to 
Conditional Zoning Districts as provided in NC Chapter 160D: Article 7; Section 160D-
703(a)1 and Session Bill 2019-111, Section 2.9(b). 

Planning Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the UDO TA 21-01, Changing all Special Use Zoning 
Districts (SUD) to Conditional Zoning Districts (CZ), and to make the necessary statutory 
findings and recommendations to the Town Board of Commissioners. 



2 

Suggested Planning Board Motion: 
I make a motion to favorably recommend to the Town Board of Commissioners to approve 
the requested UDO Text Amendment 21-01, Changing all Special Use Zoning Districts 
(SUD) to Conditional Zoning Districts (CZ). The request is consistent with the Rolesville 
Comprehensive Plan to update the Unified Development Ordinance and Official Zoning 
Map to change all Special Use Zoning Districts to Conditional Zoning Districts as required 
in NC Chapter 160D: Article 7; Section 160D-703(a)1 and Session Bill 2019-111, Section 
2.9(b). 

Attachments: 
TA 21-01 Changing all Special Use Zoning Districts (SUD) to Conditional Zoning Districts 
(CZ). 
Map showing all current Special Use Zoning Districts (SUD) to be renamed to Conditional 
Zoning Districts. 



AMENDMENT TO THE 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

TOWN OF ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

Case Number UDO TA 21-01 

ORDINANCE TO ALIGN THE LANGUAGE OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 

ORDINANCE WITH NEWLY ADOPTED PROVISIONS OF NORTH CAROLINA 

GENERAL STATUTES CHAPTER 160D. 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes 160A-381 and 160D-702 authorize local 

governments, by ordinance, to regulate and restrict the height, number of stories and size of 

buildings and other structures, the percentage of lots that may be occupied, the size of yards, 

courts and other open space, the density of population, the location and use of buildings, 

structures, and land; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina Session Law 2019-111, Section 2.9(b) provides that existing 

special use districts or conditional use districts shall be deemed converted to conditional 

zoning districts; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina Session Law 2019-111, Section 2.9(b) further provides that 

any existing conditional use permit issued together as part of a special use district or 

conditional use district shall be deemed a “special use permit”; and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Rolesville desires to amend the the language of the Town’s 

Unified Development Ordinance, specifically its district labels, to align with the provisions 

of Session Bill 2019-111, Section 2.9(b); and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Rolesville Board of Commissioners finds that it is in the public 

interest to amend the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance as described herein below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA: 

SECTION 1. That the Town of Rolesville Official Zoning Map be amended to rename 

or relabel all Special Use Districts (SUD) to Conditional Zoning Districts (CZ) as 

follows: 

Special Use District (SUD) Change to Conditional Zoning District (CZ) 

R-40W-SUD  R-40W-CZ 

R-IS-SUD  R-IS-CZ 

R-I-SUD R-I-CZ 

R-ID-SUD  R-ID-CZ 

R-II-SUD R-II-CZ 



Special Use District (SUD) Change to Conditional Zoning District (CZ) 

R-IID-SUD  R-IID-CZ 

R-III-SUD  R-III-CZ 

R-MH-SUD  R-MH-CZ 

R-MH-SUD  R-MH-CZ 

RuMH-SUD  RuMH-CZ 

UMH-SUD  UMH-CZ 

R&PUD-SUD  R&PUD-CZ 

O&P-SUD  O&P-CZ 

C-SUD C-CZ 

CH-SUD CH-CZ 

CO-SUD CO-CZ 

C-W-SUD  CW-CZ 

I-SUD  I-CZ 

I-W-SUD IW-CZ 

SECTION 2. That Article 4, Zoning District; Section 4.1 Establishment and Purpose 

of Districts; Special Use Districts, be amended to remove the following language from 

Section 4.1: 

 Addition  

 Alteration (additions are italicized and deletions are struck through) 

 Deletion 

“Special Use Districts:

The purpose of these districts is to promote greater land use compatibility by 

allowing landowners to voluntarily place their property into classifications in which 

a special use permit is required as a prerequisite to any use or development.  More 

specifically, the purpose of these districts is identical to that of the corresponding 

general use districts as indicated below, except that a special use permit is required 

as a prerequisite to any use or development, as provided in this ordinance. 

Special Use District  Corresponding General Use District 

R-40W-SUD  R-40W 

R-IS-SUD  R-IS 

R-I-SUD R-I 

R-ID-SUD  R-ID 

R-II-SUD R-II 

R-IID-SUD  R-IID 

R-III-SUD  R-III 



R-MH-SUD  R-MH 

R&PUD-SUD  R&PUD 

NC Overlay  N/A 

O&P-SUD  O&P 

C-SUD C 
CH-SUD C-H 
CO-SUD C-O 

CH-W-SUD  CH-W 

C-W-SUD  C-W 

I-SUD  I 

I-W-SUD I-W” 

SECTION 3. That Article 5, Use and Dimensional Standards. Section 5.3 Special Use 

Districts, be amended to be removed entirely and retitled as “Section 5.3  Reserved” 

 Addition  

 Alteration (additions are italicized and deletions are struck through) 

 Deletion 

“Section 5.3 Special Use Districts 

A Special Use District corresponds to each of the other districts authorized in this 

ordinance.  It is recognized that certain types of zoning districts would be 

inappropriate at particular locations in the absence of special conditions. Where the 

applicant desires property to be rezoned to such a district in such situations, the 

Special Use District is a means by which such special conditions can be imposed in 

the furtherance of the purposes of this ordinance.  The Special Use District 

classification will be considered in response to a petition by the owners of all of the 

property to be included.  If, for any reason, any condition imposed pursuant to these 

regulations is found to be illegal or invalid, or if the applicant should fail to accept 

any condition, it is the intent of this ordinance that the authorization of such Special 

Use Permit shall be null and void and of no effect and that proceedings be instituted 

to rezone the property to its previous zoning classification. 

Within a Special Use District, only those uses authorized by this ordinance as 

permitted or special uses within the zoning district with which the Special Use 

District corresponds shall be permitted, and all other requirements of the 

corresponding district and other requirements of this ordinance shall be met.  If the 

use would be a special use in the corresponding district, all of the requirements in 

Article 8 for all special uses and the applicable special use shall be met.  In addition, 

within a Special Use District, no use shall be permitted except pursuant to a Special 



Use Permit authorized by the Town Board of Commissioners which shall specify 

the use or uses authorized.  The Special Use Permit may further specify conditions 

based on the issues raised concerning Special Uses in Article 8 of this ordinance and 

any other reasonable and appropriate conditions.” 

SECTION 4. 

Any valid Special Use Permit issued under “Article 4, Zoning District; Section 4.1 

Establishment and Purpose of Districts; Special Use Districts” or “Article 5, Use and 

Dimensional Standards. Section 5.3 Special Use Districts” shall now be deemed a special 

use permit applicable to the property as well as a condition to its particular Conditional 

Zoning District. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective on the date of its 

adoption by the Board of Commissioners. 

Adopted this ___ day of ____________________, 2021 by the Town of Rolesville Board 

of Commissioners. 

Ronnie Currin 
Town of Rolesville Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Robin Peyton, Town Clerk for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina, do hereby certify 

the foregoing to be a true copy of an ordinance duly adopted at the meeting of the Town 

Board of Commissioners held on this ___ day of ____________________, 2021. 

In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the Town of 

Rolesville to be affixed this ___ day of ____________________, 2021. 

_________________________________ 

Robin Peyton 

(seal)  Town Clerk 



S

Main

S
t

Lou
isb

urg

Rd

Jones

Dairy

Rd

Louisburg

Rd

Main

D
ivi

de
Dr

Leland Dr

Ca lva
do

s
Dr

Lo
ui

sb
ur

y
Rd

Ligon
M

ill R
d

Fo
re

st
vil

le
Rd

A
l thorp

Dr

Trentini Av
e

Rogers

Rd
S

Main

St

Jones vil le
R

d

Pulley

TownRd

Pulley Town

Rd

E
Young

S
t

E 
Young 

St

N

Main

St

B
ridge

Point D
r

Song Sparrow Dr

Donner Trl

A
l ex and

e r S pr
in

g

sLn

Burlington

Mills

Rd

Roxbury Dr

Barham Hollow Dr

Shad
o wda leLn

Chalk Rd

For bes
Rd

Bu
ck Run

Tr
l

O ld Dair y Dr

Herit a ge Li
nks

Dr

G
oochC

t

Jones
Fa rm

R
d

SimwoodAve

Mountai
n

Hi

llDr

M
ar

sh

all

Fa
rm

S
t

Cloudy

Day Ct

Heritage View Trl

Mackin aw
D

r

Irina Dr

So
ng

Sp
arrow Dr

A
ve

re
tte

R
d

Virgi n

ia

Water Dr

Tr
illi

ck
 C

t

Sweetclover Dr

Clea rs
pri

ng
s

D
r

Hampton Lake
Dr

Margo
t s

A
ve

Herit a
ge

La
ke

Rd Wait Ave

CanningPl

Fawn Lily Dr

W
Yo

un
g

S
t

Nortw

ic
k

R
d

Yew
Pine

Ct

BirdhouseLn

St
on

em
il lF

all

sDr

Walters

Dr

Mcneil St

Be nd

em
ee

r
Ln

Longleaf Es tates Dr

W
ill

ow
la

wn
Dr

Mitchell
Mill

Rd

Kitchin Farm
s

W
ay

Re
dfo

rdPla c e

D
r

Adkins Ridge Rd

Hartham
Park Ave

Quarry

Rd

Gra
nit

e

Fa l l s

Blvd

Coach L
a ntern Ave

Fairlong
Rd

W
int

er

Spr
ing Dr

Je
ffr

e y
sL

n

Greenville Loop Rd

Ch

imney
Sw

if t Dr

W
ate rs tone

Ln

Lillie Liles

Rd

Wall C re
ek

Dr

Weathers St
Pr

ev
e

ni
en

t D
r Pe

tit
e 

C
t

Ci
marr on

Pk wy

Big Willo w Way

Shu
for

d R
d

Da
vis

Ho
us

e 
Ln

Sa
m

 C
t

Ca
sh

linDr

Alicante
St

Sky Hill Pl

Longbour n
D

r

EveningS now St

Pulley St

Clear Cut Ct

Fairs
ton

e Rd

Zebulon

Rd

R
ai

ny
La

ke
 S

t

Evening Shade Ave

Alba Rose

Ave

Bridgeton
Ave

Frog HopCtD
ay

br
ea

k 
D

r

Linslade
W

ay

B rewer
Jac kson Ct

B
ro

wn
wi

ch
St

W
oo

te
n

Ct

Freeman Farm Way

Suns e tManor Dr

FriendshipChapel Rd

Lo
ui

sb
ur

g

Rd

Ivy
C

re
ek

Tr
l

S
Fr

an
kl

in
S

t

P ri de
s

Cr
sg

Margrave Dr

Stone Fly
Dr

C
he

lrid
ge

Dr

Lawson Walk Way

Falconhurs
t D

r

R
olesville

R
d

G
ra

ni
te

Vi
st

a 
D

r

C
reek

PineDr

La
ria

t

R i d
ge

Dr

Te
re

sa
D

r

Herita
ge Heights Ln

S

tuart s Rid
ge

Rd

H
u ntingcreek

Dr

Matinvesi
St

Beaver Tan Ct

Perry S t

Jersey

Pi
ne

Dr

Endurance
D

r

Old
Pearce

Rd

Horsem
int

Trl

Crossover

Allie Bell Ln

Gra
nd

m
ar

k
St

G
ood

N
ew

s D
r

Century Farm Rd

Co
lon

ia
l

Cl
ub

Rd

Orchard
Oriole Trl

La
ss

it e
r

R
d

Bad N
ew

s
D

r

Granite View
DrC

ornwel lD
r

Gwen
Dr

Whi te Carriage
Dr

Do
dfo

rd Ct

St
ev

es
D

r

Centaur Rd

M
illrich Ln

Fo
wl

er
s

Cr
ee

k D
r

C
ro

ok
e d

Cr e e
k

R
d

H
untm

asterTrl

Foxwild Ln

Enville Ct

R
oc

ky
 K

no
ll

Ln

Bob
Kat Ln

H
azel Ln

Aquarius Ln

Autumn
Forest Trl

Bu
rg

eC
t

W
ak

e
O

ak
s

Ln

Coral Bell Dr

Sc
ar

bo
rou

gh

O
ak

Trl

Welding Rd

Laid Back Ln

Ca
pi

tal

Creek Dr

R
idge

Spring
R

d

Pr
ai

rie
 A

st
er

C
t

G
rand

Slam
A

ve
Siro n

C
ir

Leb

attonDr

Sandy
W

oo ds Dr

E
ve

rstoneRd

R
ub

yL
ee

D
r

Pine Valley
Dr

Edgefield Dr

Irish Dr

Pomona Ave

Fowler

Rd

Dan
dri

dg
e

Oak
Ln

Bu
rn

in
g 

P
in

e Ln

B
arham

S
iding

R
d

Malor
Dr

B
lu

e
L i

la
c

Ln

Cr
ys

ta
lR

oc
k

Rd

Li
ttl

ep
or

tDr

Country

Heritage Ln
C

lo

vi s Ridge Dr

TortugaSt

W
al

ls
Co

ve
Ln

W
el

lsp
rin

g
Fa

rm
s 

Ln

Foundation Dr

B
AndB

Ln

Aventon Gl
en

Dr

N
o r

th
Fo

rk Dr

RedfordP
lace

D
r

Ba
y

La
ur

el
Ct

Emily Ln

D
ry

 R
oc

k 
Ln

Dogwood
Meado wTrl

Will Let Ln

D
an

ie
l

R
d

M

oores PondRd

H
op

e
Fa

rm L n

C
en

ta
ur

Rd

O ld Crawfor d
Rd

Os car Barham Rd

1 inch = 4,000 feet

¥
Produced by the Town of Rolesville

Planning Department, 2021
Data provided in part by the

Wake County GIS Department

Legend
SUD Zoning Districts

Streets

Parcels

Rolesville_Town_Limits

160D - Change all SUD Districts to CZ Districts

Back To Agenda



The Town of Rolesville is committed to providing accessible facilities, programs and services 
for all people in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you need 
assistance or a particular accommodation please contact the ADA Coordinator. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
1.  UDO TA 20-04 Town Center Zoning District Text Amendment – Approved  
 on January 5, 2021   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

For more information or assistance,  
Please contact: 
Shelly Raby, Planning Development Specialist 
Phone: 919-554-6517 
shelly.raby@rolesville.nc.gov 

DECEMBER 2020 
ACTIVITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
REPORT 
 

HIGHLIGHTS 



 1 
 

Developments  
CURRENT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS WITH PERMITS ISSUED 
Summary of Activity by Subdivision  

 

 

 

 
 

 

21 13 19 16 15 74 0 5 0 0 0
12 8 18 21 24 1914 11

25 24
3

1720 31
11 21 10 1012 15 12

40
14 12

83 78
90

122

66 65

0

50

100

150

July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

Permits Issued in the Last 6 Months

New Single-Family Dwellings New Townhomes

Certificate of Occupancy Certificates of Completion/Compliance

Residential Alterations/Accessory Trade

All Permits

Subdivision 

Total 
Buildable 

Lots 

Total 
Permits  Issued 

Per Development 

Un-permitted 
Lots 

Remaining 

Permits 
Issued in 

December 

Permits 
Issued 
YTD 

Averette Ridge 159 145 14 2 19 
Barrington 33 33 0  7 

Carlton Pointe 271 261 10  22 
Granite Falls 101 80 21 3 39 
Perry Farms 41 40 1  5 
Stonewater 208 189 19 2 40 
Willoughby 88 80 8  113 

TOTAL 901 828 73 7 245 

Barrington 
Townhomes 

 
32 

 
18 

 
14 

 
 

 
18 

TOTAL 32 18 14  18 

Non-
Subdivision 

 
   

 
 

 

TOTAL 
Residential 

Permits Issued 

 
 
 

933 

 
 
 

 
846 

 
 
 
 

87 

 
 
 
 
7 

 
 
 
 

263 

 

        

       

       

 



 2 
 

 
 

 

 
 
The Town of Rolesville has experienced an overall increase in permitting activity compared  
to this time last year. 
 
 

 

9

0

14

23

7

0

19

30

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

New Single-Family Dwellings New Townhomes Certificate of Occupancy All Permit Types Issued

Permits Issued in 2019 vs 2020

Dec 2019 vs Dec 2020

77 72
188 191

256

37

183

1004

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2020 Planning Review

Permitting Activity 



 3 

Detailed information regarding these projects can be found by clicking on the link provided 
https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/planning/development-projects 

Commercial/ Other 
Carlton Pointe Green Way Trail Rolesville CrossFit   C4 Investments 
101 and 115 Redford Place Drive 1200 Granite Falls Blvd.    515 S. Main St. 
Carolina Legacy Volleyball  Rural Fire Dept. Addition 

Residential 
A-Master Team Townhomes - 47 New Townhomes
Chandlers Ridge- 90 New Single-Family Homes
Elizabeth Springs- 89 New Single-Family Homes & 98 New Townhomes
Kalas Falls- 484 New Single-Family Homes & 108 New Townhomes
Preserve at Jones Dairy Road Central- 261 New Single-Family Homes & 173 New 
Townhomes 
Preserve at Jones Dairy Road North- 141 New Single-Family Homes & 65 New Townhomes 
Preserve at Jones Dairy Road South- 221 New Single-Family Homes  
Regency at Heritage- 27 New Single-Family Homes  
The Point- 483 New Single-Family Homes & 324 New Townhomes 
The Townes at Carlton Pointe- 53 New Townhomes 
Hopper Community – 177 New Single-Family Homes & 120 New Townhomes 

90 89

484

261
141

221

27

483

47
98 108

173
65

324

53

0
100
200
300
400
500
600

PROJECTS BY THE NUMBERS
Proposed New Single-Family Homes Proposed New Townhomes

Development Projects Summary 

Back to Agenda

https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/planning/development-projects

	Item 3.0 PB_Memo_MA 21-01 Town Center Zoning District.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Item 4.0 MA 21-02 PL_PB_Memo 20210125.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	Item 6 December Activity Development Report.pdf
	CURRENT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS WITH PERMITS ISSUED
	Subdivision
	Barrington Townhomes
	TOTAL
	18
	14
	18
	32
	Non-Subdivision
	TOTAL Residential Permits Issued




